
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions 
 

Delegated Executive/Officer Decisions    

  

 Delegated Executive and Officer decisions are published every Wednesday  and are 

available at the following link - https://tinyurl.com/ms6umor 

  

Cabinet decisions subject to call-in are published at the following link -http://tinyurl.com/yddrqll6 

 

Notice of call-in for non-urgent decisions must be given to the Democratic Support Unit by 4.30 

pm on Wednesday 12 January 2022.  Please note – urgent decisions and non-key Council Officer 

decisions cannot be called in. Copies of the decisions together with background reports are 

available for viewing as follows: 

 

 on the Council's Intranet Site at https://modgov/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx 

 on the Council’s website at https://tinyurl.com/jhnax4e 

 

The decisions detailed below may be implemented on Thursday 13 January 2022 if they are not 

called-in. 

 

 

Oversight and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Ballard House 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

T 01752 668000 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 05/01/22 

https://tinyurl.com/ms6umor
http://tinyurl.com/yddrqll6
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Delegated Decisions 
 
 

1. Councillor Jonathan Drean, Cabinet Member for Transport:    
 

 1.1. THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH (MOVING TRAFFIC 

REGULATION ORDERS) (AMENDMENT ORDER No. 

2021.2137263 - CYCLE CONTRAFLOWS) ORDER 

(Pages 1 - 26) 

   

 



 

 

OFFICIAL 

EXECUTIVE DECISION 

  made by a Cabinet Member

 

 

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY BY AN 

INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER 

Executive Decision Reference Number – T18 21/22 

 

Decision 

1 Title of decision: THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH (MOVING TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS) 

(AMENDMENT ORDER No. 2021.2137263 – CYCLE CONTRAFLOWS) ORDER  
2 Decision maker (Cabinet member name and portfolio title):  Councillor Jonathan 

Drean, Cabinet Member for Transport 

3 Report author and contact details: Amy Neale, Traffic Management Technician, email: 

trafficmanagementinbox@plymouth.gov.uk   

4 
Decision to be taken:  

To implement the following amendments to The City of Plymouth (Moving Traffic Regulation 

Orders) (Consolidation) Order 2014  

 

The effect of the order shall be to Add: 

One Way Except Pedal Cycles & Prohibition of Entry with an exemption for Pedal 

Cycles on lengths of the following roads: 

Maple Grove, St Mary Street, Citadel Road, Crowndale Avenue, Apsley Road, Gordon Terrace, 

Napier Terrace, Admirals Hard, Elm Road, Meadfoot Terrace, Mount Street, Prospect Street, 

Camden Street, Amity Place   

 

5 Reasons for decision: 

One-way streets and no entries are in place on many streets that can accommodate two-way 

cycling. DFT guidance advises that “there should be a general presumption in favour of cycling in 

both directions in one-way streets unless there are safety, operational or cost reasons why this 

is not feasible.” Allowing contraflow cycling can help provide a more direct route for cyclists, 

often enabling them to avoid busier roads. Allowing cyclists to use roads or paths that are 

prohibited to general traffic is known as “filtered permeability” which is specifically referred to 

in the adopted SPD. 

This package proposes 14 contraflow schemes across the city which will help encourage cycling 

in Plymouth and so support the council’s objectives around Climate Emergency, health, quality 

of life and the economy. 

 

6 Alternative options considered and rejected: 

An alternative option would be to not proceed with some, or all of the proposals but this 

would undermine the effectiveness of the programme in achieving the objectives that are 

supported by increasing levels of cycling in Plymouth. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1a

mailto:trafficmanagementinbox@plymouth.gov.uk


 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

7 Financial implications and risks: 

The cost of these works is fully covered through the Active Travel Fund which has been made 

possible through a successful funding bid to the Department for Transport. 

8 Is the decision a Key Decision? 

(please contact Democratic 

Support for further advice) 

 

Yes                          No Per the Constitution, a key 

decision is one which: 

 x in the case of capital projects and 

contract awards, results in a new 

commitment to spend and/or save in 

excess of £3million in total  

 x 
in the case of revenue projects when 

the decision involves entering into new 

commitments and/or making new 

savings in excess of £1million  

 x 
is significant in terms of its effect on 

communities living or working in an 

area comprising two or more wards 

in the area of the local authority.  

If yes, date of publication of the 

notice in the Forward Plan of Key 

Decisions 

 

9 Please specify how this decision is 

linked to the Council’s corporate 

plan/Plymouth Plan and/or the 

policy framework and/or the 

revenue/capital budget: 

The Local Transport Plan (incorporated within the 

Joint Local Plan and Plymouth Plan) details the 

transport strategies and policies that the City Council 

has adopted and will be key in helping the city meet its 

Corporate Plan priorities, and growth agenda.  

 

10 Please specify any direct 

environmental implications of the 

decision (carbon impact) 

The decision will improve safe and convenient access 

for cyclists, therefore helping to improve cycling as an 

alternative to the private car.  29% of the city’s carbon 

emissions are associated with transport, a proportion 

that is rising. It is expected that this decision, and the 

associated scheme, will be beneficial in reducing the 

city’s carbon impact. 

 

Urgent decisions 

11 Is the decision urgent and to be 

implemented immediately in 

the interests of the Council or 

the public?  

Yes  (If yes, please contact Democratic 

Support 

(democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk) 

for advice) 

No x (If no, go to section 13a) 

12a Reason for urgency: 

 

Page 2

mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FmgListPlans.aspx%3FRPId%3D254%26amp%3BRD%3D0
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FmgListPlans.aspx%3FRPId%3D254%26amp%3BRD%3D0
mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk


 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

12b Scrutiny 

Chair 

Signature: 

 

 

Date  

 

Scrutiny 

Committee 

name: 

 

Print 

Name: 

 

Consultation 

13a Are any other Cabinet members’ 

portfolios affected by the 

decision? 

Yes   

No x (If no go to section 14) 

13b Which other Cabinet member’s 

portfolio is affected by the 

decision? 

Councillor Jonathan Drean, Cabinet Member for 

Transport 

 

13c Date Cabinet member consulted 13/10/2021 

14 Has any Cabinet member 

declared a conflict of interest in 

relation to the decision? 

Yes  If yes, please discuss with the 

Monitoring Officer  

No x 

15 Which Corporate Management 

Team member has been 

consulted? 

Name  Anthony Payne 

Job title Strategic Director for Place 

Date 

consulted 
08/12/2021 

Sign-off  

16 Sign off codes from the relevant 

departments consulted: 

Democratic Support 

(mandatory) 

DS89 21/22 

Finance (mandatory) pl.21.22.208. 

Legal (mandatory) LS/37784/JP/151
221. 

Human Resources (if 

applicable) 

N/A 

Corporate property (if 

applicable) 

N/A 

Procurement (if applicable) N/A 

 

Page 3



 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 Appendices 

17 Ref. Title of appendix 

A Briefing report for publication 

B Equalities Impact Assessment 

 

 

Confidential/exempt information 

18a Do you need to include any 

confidential/exempt information?   

 

 

Yes 

 

 If yes, prepare a second, confidential (‘Part 

II’) briefing report and indicate why it is 

not for publication by virtue of Part 1of 

Schedule 12A of the Local Government 

Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box in 

18b below.   

(Keep as much information as possible in 

the briefing report that will be in the 

public domain) 

No x 

 Exemption Paragraph Number 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

18b  Confidential/exempt briefing 

report title: 

 

     
  

Background Papers 

19 Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. 

Background papers are unpublished works, relied on to a material extent in preparing the 

report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the work is 

based.  If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it is not for 

publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the 

relevant box.   

 

Title of background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

 

 

       

        

 

 

       

Page 4



 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Cabinet Member Signature 

20 I agree the decision and confirm that it is not contrary to the Council’s policy and budget 

framework, Corporate Plan or Budget. In taking this decision I have given due regard to the 

Council’s duty to promote equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and 

promote good relations between people who share protected characteristics under the 

Equalities Act and those who do not. For further details please see the EIA attached. 

Signature 

 

Date of decision 05/01/2022 

Print Name 

 

Councillor Jonathan Drean 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

CYCLE CONTRAFLOWS
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 

This report seeks delegated authority to implement amendments to The City of Plymouth (Moving 

Traffic Regulation Orders) (Consolidation) Order 2014 in association with the Cycle Contraflow 

TRO. 

 

The Cycle Contraflow programme is being delivered as part of Council’s 2021/221 Active Travel 

Fund programme which is funded by the Department for Transport. The programme is designed 

to promote cycling as a replacement for journeys previously made by public transport, and as a 

practical alternative to the private car. It has been designed to create an environment that is safer 

for both cycling and walking, for trips to work and school, and is designed to encourage new 

cyclists, as well as those for whom active travel is the norm. Full details of the programme are 

available on the Council’s website at www.plymouth.gov.uk/activetravelfund  

 

The Cycle Contraflow programme is intended to increase network permeability for cyclists and 

help to provide quicker and more reliable journey times than equivalent trips by private cars.  The 

programme supports the ‘accessibility for all’ requirements within the Department for Transport’s 

Cycle Infrastructure Design guidance Local Transport Note LTN1/201. The routes created will be 

more direct than those available for private cars and will help to allow people to reach day to day 

destinations on routes that connect.  

 

2. TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS REQUIRED 

 

2.1 The elements that need a Traffic Regulation Order are as follows:  

 

To Add; 

Prohibition of Entry with an exemption for Pedal Cycles  

i. Maple Grove – at its junction with Beechwood Avenue 

ii. St Mary Street – at its junction with East Street 

 

One Way except for Pedal Cycles 

i. Citadel Road – from its junction with West Hoe Road to its junction with Prospect Place 

in an easterly direction 

ii. Crowndale Avenue – for its entirety in an easterly direction 

iii. Apsley Road – from its junction with Sutherland Road to its junction with Dale Road in an 

easterly direction   

iv. Gordon Terrace – for is entirety in a westerly direction 

v. Napier Terrace – from its junction with Ermington Terrace to its junction with Gordon 

Terrace in a westerly direction 

                                            
1 Cycle infrastructure design (LTN 1/20) - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Page 7

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/activetravelfund
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-120


 

 

OFFICIAL 

vi. Napier Terrace – from its junction with Houndiscombe Road to its junction with Napier 

Terrace (main) in a northerly direction 

vii. Admirals Hard – from its junction with Cremyll Street to its junction with Durnford Street 

in an easterly direction  

viii. Elm Road – from its junction with Western College Road to its junction with Meadfoot 

Terrace in an easterly direction 

ix. Meadfoot Terrace – for its entirety in a south westerly direction  

x. Mount Street – for its entirety in a southerly direction  

xi. Prospect Street – from its junction with Armada Street to its junction with Camden Street 

in a northerly direction 

xii. Camden Street – from its junction with Mount Street to its junction with Prospect Street 

in an easterly direction 

xiii. Amity Place – for its entirety in a southerly direction  

 

SCHEDULE OF REVOCATIONS 

Prohibition of Entry  

i. Maple Grove – at its junction with Beechwood Avenue 

ii. St Mary Street – at its junction with East Street 

 

One Way 

i. Citadel Road – from its junction with West Hoe Road to its junction with Prospect Place 

in an easterly direction 

ii. Crowndale Avenue – for its entirety in an easterly direction 

iii. Apsley Road – from its junction with Sutherland Road to its junction with Dale Road in an 

easterly direction  

iv. Gordon Terrace – for is entirety in a westerly direction 

v. Napier Terrace – from its junction with Ermington Terrace to its junction with Gordon 

Terrace in a westerly direction 

vi. Napier Terrace – from its junction with Houndiscombe Road to its junction with Napier 

Terrace (main) in a northerly direction 

vii. Admirals Hard – from its junction with Cremyll Street to its junction with Durnford Street 

in an easterly direction  

viii. Elm Road – from its junction with Western College Road to its junction with Meadfoot 

Terrace in an easterly direction 

ix. Meadfoot Terrace – for its entirety in a south westerly direction  

x. Mount Street – for its entirety in a southerly direction 

xi. Prospect Street – from its junction with Armada Street to its junction with Camden Street 

in a northerly direction 

Page 8



 

 

OFFICIAL 

xii. Camden Street – from its junction with Mount Street to its junction with Prospect Street 

in an easterly direction 

xiii. Amity Place – for its entirety in a southerly direction 

 

 
3. STATUTORY CONSULTATION 

Proposals 

Before statutory consultation started, the proposals for the 14 cycle contraflows were sent to Ward 

Members on 28 September 2021. 

 

The proposed Cycle Contraflow TRO’s were advertised on street, in the Herald and on the Plymouth 

City Council website on 22nd October 2021.  

 

Details of the proposals were sent to the Councillors representing the affected wards and statutory 

consultees on 19th October 2021. 

 

The consultation closed on 12th November. 

 

There have been five representations received relating to the proposals included in the Traffic 

Regulation Order. Two were received within the consultation period (Table Two) and a further three 

were received after the consultation closed. The City Council is not required to consider late 

consultation submissions. However, the responses have been taken into consideration and hence are 

included in this report for completeness. 

 

The representations are from both private residents and wider stakeholder groups.  

 

A summary of the representations received on the contraflow proposals are in Table One: 

 

Table One: Summary of all representations received 

No. Road Number of representations 

Support Support with 

amendments 

Oppose with 

amendments 

Oppose 

1 Maple Grove  1   

2 St Marys Street 1    

3 Citadel Road 1    

4 Crowndale Avenue  1   

5 Apsley Road 1    

6 Gordon Terrace 1    

7 Napier Terrace 1    

8 Admirals Hard  1  1 

9 Elm Road  1 1  

10 Meadfoot Terrace 1   1 

11 Mount Street 1   1 

12 Prospect Street 1   1 

Page 9



 

 

OFFICIAL 

13 Camden Street 1   1 

14 Amity Place 1    

 TOTAL 10 4 1 5 

 Overall programme 1   1 

 

The information presented in the table above can be summarised as follows: 

- 6 of the contraflows were supported with no specific opposition  

- 5 of the contraflows received objections 

- 1 contraflow received an objection, with a proposed amendment 

- 4 contraflows received support, with proposed amendments 

- The overall programme received one representation that was supportive, and one that 

objected. 

 

The statutory consultation was preceded by a survey considering the wider Active Travel Fund 

programme in summer 2021.The survey was undertaken by an independent market research 

company. 2,008 responses were received. The survey results therefore have a margin of error of 

circa 2.18% at the 95% confidence level, based on the total population size estimate of Plymouth. 

(262,100 (ONS, Mid-Year Estimates 2019).  

 

Over two thirds of respondents to the survey thought it was either extremely or very important 

to promote walking and cycling in Plymouth and 59% either agreed or strongly agreed that the 

cycle contraflow programme would encourage them to walk or cycle in Plymouth. A summary of 

the results is available online (www.plymouth.gov.uk/activetravelfund).  

 

  

Page 10

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/activetravelfund


 

 

OFFICIAL 

Table Two: Representations received within the consultation period 

 

Consultee 
Number 

Consultation Feedback Council Response 

1 Overall PCyC supports the proposed contra flows. 
 
We emphasise that the signs at each end of the 
contraflow: SR002 at the start and SR001 at the 
end are clearly visible to both cyclists and 
motorists. 
If not already specified the speed limit on all 
roads with a contraflow needs to be 20mph. 
 
 
 
 
 
i. Maple Grove – at its junction with Beechwood 
Avenue (drawing 0002) 
If car parking remains on both sides cyclists going 
down a quite steep gradient will meet traffic 
turning in off Dale Rd in the middle of the road  
 
 
 
 
 
ii. Crowndale Avenue Lower Compton – for its 
entirety in an easterly direction (drawing 0001) 
PCyC supports this proposal but notes that this 
route is used as a rat-run so traffic heading North 
on Chapel Way needs to be slowed down 

Thank you for your response of 1 November.   The schemes that are currently 
proposed have been selected from a larger list on the basis that they have been 
assessed as being appropriate for a cycle contraflow without wider measures such as 
20 mph speed limits.  In order to be effective and minimise signage and confusion, 20 
mph speed limits are generally better applied to wider areas rather than an individual 
Street. Area wide 20 mph speed limits are beyond the scope and budget of this 
project, and therefore not currently proposed. However, due to the nature of the 
roads in question, it is expected that the majority of vehicles will not be travelling in 
speeds in excess of 20 mph. Furthermore, the road markings and signage reducing the 
apparent lane width available to vehicles, and alerting them to the potential presence 
of oncoming cyclists, may further reduce vehicle speeds. 
 
 
Maple Grove is currently a two-way street as is indicated by the roadmarkings at the 
southern end, and so there is no indication to northbound drivers that they should 
not be expecting oncoming traffic. Intervisibility is reasonable for right turning 
vehicles which are most likely to come into conflict with contraflow cyclists. 
 
To clarify further, the current situation is that cycling is already permitted north along 
Maple Grove, but not through the no entry signs at the southern end at the top of the 
hill. 
 
 
We have reviewed the Crowndale Avenue proposals and will look to include 
additional roadmarkings to highlight the presence of contraflow cyclists emerging 
from the junction between Chapel Way and Crowndale Avenue  
 
 

P
age 11



 

 

OFFICIAL 

   
vii. Admirals Hard, Stonehouse– from its junction 
with Cremyll Street to its junction with Durnford 
Street in an easterly direction  (drawing 0008) 
PCyC supports this long-standing proposal to 
create a direct route for cyclists to the Cremyll 
Ferry. Both Durnford St. and Cremyll St.need to 
have a 20mph speed limit if not already specified. 
 
 
viii. Elm Road – from its junction with Western 
College Road to its junction with Meadfoot 
Terrace in an easterly direction (drawing 0012) 
PCyC supports this proposal, but would point out 
that with current traffic density turning right 
uphill from Elm Road onto Mannamead Road is 
often difficult for motorists and can be very 
dangerous for cyclists. 
 
 
We would also emphasise that clear signage is 
required at the end section of some existing 
contra-flows. One example is the section from the 
bottom of Lambay Hill to the Barbican, where it is 
not clear to motorists that they will meet 
oncoming cyclists.  
 
 
PCyC supports the following proposals: 
i. Citadel Road, Hoe– from its junction with West 
Hoe Road to its junction with Prospect Place in an 
easterly direction (drawing 0001) 

 
Durnford Street and Cremyll Street are already part of a 20 mph zone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The right turn from Elm Road onto Mannamead Road is already a permitted 
manoeuvre, it is acknowledged that this manoeuvre could be challenging at busy 
times. Cyclists that do not feel safe to make the right turn manoeuvre have the option 
to walk along the footway to cross at the signalised crossing. Options to improve the 
connection here could be to provide an additional crossing or a shared use facility on 
the East side of Mannamead Road but these options are beyond the budget and 
scope of this programme.  
 
 
 
Thank you for your comment, this existing scheme is not part of this program but we 
have raised this concern with the Council’s Road Safety team who are looking to 
address this. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 12



 

 

OFFICIAL 

ii. St Mary Street Stonehouse– at its junction with 
East Street (drawing 0038) 
iii. Apsley Road – from its junction with 
Sutherland Road to its junction with Dale Road in 
an easterly direction  (drawing 0002 +3) 
iv. Gordon Terrace – for is entirety in a westerly 
direction (drawing 0002+3) legitimises existing 
use by cyclists 
v. Napier Terrace – from its junction with 
Ermington Terrace to its junction with  
Gordon Terrace in a westerly direction (drawing 
0004) 
vi. Napier Terrace – from its junction with 
Houndiscombe Road to its junction with Napier 
Terrace (main) in a northerly direction (drawing 
0004+5) 
ix. Meadfoot Terrace – for its entirety in a south 
westerly direction (drawing 0012) 
x. Mount Street – for its entirety in a southerly 
direction (drawing 0017) 
xi. Prospect Street – from its junction with 
Armada Street to its junction with Camden Street 
in a northerly direction (drawing 0017) 
xii. Camden Street – from its junction with Mount 
Street to its junction with Prospect Street in an 
easterly direction (drawing 0018) 
xiii. Amity Place – for its entirety in a southerly 
direction (drawing 0021) 
 

 
 
Thank you for your support. 

2 I have never since such a ludicrous plan for a 
cyclist contra flow in the following streets 
Prospect, Camden and Mount Streets. All these 

Thank you for your email of 9 November objecting to the proposals to allow people to 
cycle in a contraflow direction on the existing one-way system on Prospect Street, 
Camden Street and Mount Street. 

P
age 13



 

 

OFFICIAL 

streets are only one lane due to residential 
parking and are some of the worse maintained 
roads in the area. 
 
All cyclists need to do to is navigate the existing 
oneway system. None of the streets in the 
oneway system are miles apart just a few metres. 
And as for joyriding in Drake's Ward there are 
certainly more attractive places to ride a bike 
than a residential area with rubbish strewn 
around and regular fly tipping.  
 
There is a school in Mount Street which is very 
busy in the morning and mid-afternoon with 
parents dropping off and collecting their children 
apart from delivery vans, taxi's and normal 
residential traffic during the daytime.  
 
Whoever thought this plan up should go back to 
the drawing board study areas for cycle paths and 
certainly not contaflow systems in one lane 
residential streets.  
 
There will be accidents and cyclists will end up on 
the footpaths putting residential pedestrians in 
harms way. 
 
I have attached some photos for your information 
to this email and undercover on two separate 
emails. 

 
The purpose of the proposals is to help make it easier and more convenient for people 
to cycle for everyday journeys, not just for leisure. Plymouth City Council has declared 
a Climate Emergency and with road transport representing circa 30% of the city's 
carbon emissions, a proportion that is increasing, it is necessary that we help make it 
easier for people to walk and cycle. There are of course also significant health and 
decongestion benefits with increased levels of cycling. 
 
The available width on the roads mentioned is limited, but has been assessed as being 
sufficient to allow contraflow cycling on these roads. It is worth noting that there are 
residential streets in Plymouth that have a similar width available that are two-way 
for all traffic, cycles of course require less width than cars and vans. The proposed 
designs have all been reviewed as part of a Road Safety Audit. 
 
We note your concerns about the maintenance of the roads and have shared them 
with the Councils Highways maintenance team. If the proposals are approved, we will 
review the road surface before the work takes place with a view to patching sections 
that are particularly deteriorated. 
 
We are also sorry to hear about the rubbish and fly tipping and have passed on this 
concern, with the photographs, to our Highways maintenance/cleansing team. 

 
 

P
age 14



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
Table Three: Representations received outside the consultation period 

 

Consultee 
number 

Consultation Feedback Council Response 

3 1. This is a bad idea. 
 
1.1 I witness many times a day, every day of the 
week, cyclists disregarding the Law and cycling 
the wrong way down one way streets. All this 
relaxation of the Law will do is to get cyclists 
more and more into the mentality that cycling 
down a way way street in the wrong direction is 
the norm. 
 
1.2 This is dangerous for pedestrians who 
currently can step off of the pavement after 
checking for oncoming traffic. Pedestrians will 
have no way of knowing which ones of a small 
proportion of one way streets allow cyclists to 
go against the traffic flow. I am confident that 
there will be collisions between pedestrians and 
cyclists if this arrangement is permitted. 
 
1.3 Accordingly, I submit that this proposal 
should be rejected. 
 
2. As regards Admirals Hard, such an 
arrangement would be contrary to "unless there 
are safety, operational or cost reasons why this 
is not feasible, i.e. in this case "safety". At the 
junction between Admirals Hard and Durnford 

Thank you for your email of 14 November raising concerns about the proposed cycle 
contraflow programme generally, and specifically on Admirals Hard. 
 
Your concern that allowing people to cycle in a contraflow direction in some locations 
would encourage them to generally cycle the wrong way down one-way streets is 
acknowledged. However, it could be argued that continuing to prohibit people from 
cycling in a contraflow direction where it is considered safe for them to do so, may 
actually be more likely to have such an effect. Keeping one-way streets one-way for 
cycling, only where there is a safety concern, may actually encourage greater 
compliance because people cycling will be better able to understand the rationale. 
 
To reduce the risk of pedestrians stepping into the path of cyclists, road markings and 
signage will make it clear that cycles can be expected in both directions. In the case of 
Admirals Hard, this includes a marked cycle lane with cycle symbols and arrows 
pointing in the contraflow direction, along with coloured surfacing denoting the start 
and end of the cycle contraflow. 
 
Regarding Admirals Hard specifically as it approaches Durnford Street, the width 
between the kerbs is 3.4 m at its narrowest section which is considered sufficient for 
this arrangement because the road is not heavily trafficked and the majority of vehicles 
using this road have a width of less than 2 m. Replacement of a small section of cobbles 
with asphalt surfacing will also create a more usable road width at the eastern end and 
provide a more level surface for pedestrians to cross. In addition, Admirals Hard is 
within a 20 mph zone, and vehicles are generally not observed to be travelling at 
excessive speeds on this short stretch of road. 

P
age 15



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Street, Admirals Hard's highway width narrows 
to allow just one vehicle's width. Cyclists turning 
into Admirals Hard from Durnford Street will be 
confronted by oncoming vehicles blocking their 
route, leading to conflicts, road rage and 
inevitable accidents. Accordingly, if this proposal 
does go ahead, I submit that Admirals Hard 
should be excluded from the changes. 

4 I'm a little confused as to what is actually being 
proposed ... It reads as though you intend 
closing access, apart from Pedal Cycles, to the 
roads listed. 
  
 My interest (having lived in this area for 33 
years) and with a business in Meadfoot Terrace 
[Amber Health, Beauty & Sports Injury Clinic at 
14 Meadfoot Terrace], my concern is Elm Road 
and Meadfoot Terrace. 
  
 Ref Elm Road ... Elm Road is split into 3 
sections, from Mannamead Road it is one way 
for about 200 metres until the junction / turn 
into  
 Meadfoot Terrace. No current concerns apart 
from the potential riding of pedal cycles in the 
wrong direction up a reasonably busy section. 
 How many Cyclists are you planning to kill? 
  
 Elm Road then moves to a two way section, 
where all drivers seem to understand that 15 to 
20mph is a good speed. Few cars travel down 
this section, and even fewer travel up the hill 

Thank you for your email of 15 November. 
  
To clarify, no change to the permitted motor vehicle movements are proposed as part 
of this programme.  All sections of Elm Road that are currently two-way will remain as 
such.  The only change in terms of the permitted movements is that on the one-way 
sections of Meadfoot Terrace and Elm Road, cyclists will be permitted in a contraflow 
direction. This would appear to address some of the main concerns that you have 
raised. 
  
Regarding the concern raised about cyclists being allowed to travel northbound on 
Meadfoot Terrace because some vehicles have been seen travelling fast (around 30 
mph) in the southbound direction, contraflow cycling has been deemed to be workable 
on this street. Visibility between people cycling and those driving is good, and drivers 
will be alerted to the potential presence of cyclists through the use of signage and road 
markings including cycle symbols and direction arrows on the carriageway. In addition, 
cyclists will be travelling relatively slowly uphill here. 
  

Thank you for sharing the photographs of the vegetation growth; these have been 
passed on to our maintenance teams. 

P
age 16



 

 

OFFICIAL 

from the MOT Garage unless wanting to save a 
major detour into Meadfoot Terrace. I am not 
aware of any accidents in 30 plus years on the 
section. Why change what is working. It would 
help if the bushes at the side on the road were 
trimmed. See photos.  Why change this to a one 
way system, which may increase traffic speed 
and possibly kill a couple of cyclists. MID  
 Section - leave as is, two way. 
  
 The lower end of Elm Road (about 400 yards) is 
a wide two lane road and SHOULD NOT BE 
MADE A ONE-WAY STREET 
 
 Ref: Meadfoot Terrace - currently a one way 
street, cars (well BMW Drivers) do tend on odd 
occasions to travel at about 30 mph down 
Meadfoot Terrace, until they see that they have 
to stop before entering College Avenue or have 
to stop whilst our Clients are reversing into the 
Salon Car Park area. Allowing cyclists to pedal 
cycle up the hill of Meadfoot Terrace (currently 
they walk pushing the odd Bike) is a pretty 
stupid proposal. Once again, how many cyclists 
are you planning to kill? 
  
 Photos of the Area. See attachments. 
 See Seven attachments related to Elm Road and 
Meadfoot Terrace. 
 
 

P
age 17



 

 

OFFICIAL 

5 The roads in Drake Ward listed below are in this 
proposal 
 
Maple Grove, Apsley Road, Gordon Terrace, 
Napier Terrace, Mount Street, Prospect Street, 
Camden Street, Amity Place. 
 
I have tried to raise these plans with residents 
as they know nothing about these proposals. 
There have been some small notices on the 
streets but for some reason no letters have 
been sent to residents to alert them of the 
proposals.  
 
I have never seen such a limited consultation on 
a cycle scheme proposal.  
 
I would suggest that you extend the 
consultation period and do it in a way that the 
residents can properly engage with. I would 
suggest some direct mail and street level 
consultation meetings. 
 
The link below about the proposals is 
unreadable and means that residents can't see 
the ideas that you have. 
 
There is no urgency on this so let's ensure full 
transparency 
 
The people of Drake deserve better. Can you 
please re-advertise? 

Thank you for your email of 24 November to Councillor Drean regarding the recent 
consultation on a number of proposed cycle contraflows in Drake Ward. 
 
The Cycle Contraflow programme is being delivered as part of Council’s 2021/22 Active 
Travel Fund programme, full details of which are available on the Council’s website 
(www.plymouth.gov.uk/activetravelfund ). It is funded by the Department for 
Transport.  
 
The Active Travel Fund programme is designed to promote cycling as a replacement for 
journeys previously made by public transport, and as a practical alternative to the 
private car. It has been designed to create an environment that is safer for both cycling 
and walking, for trips to work and school (with 68 cycle casualties in 2020 alone, 14 of 
which were serious, this is something that we are committed to addressing), and is 
designed to encourage new cyclists, as well as those for whom active travel is the norm.  
 
The Cycle Contraflow programme is intended to increase network permeability for 
cyclists and help to provide quicker and more reliable journey times. It supports the 
‘accessibility for all’ requirements within the Department for Transport’s Cycle 
Infrastructure Design guidance Local Transport Note LTN1/20. 
 
Promoting active travel, and encouraging more trips to be made by sustainable 
transport, as this scheme seeks to do, is a key part of the Council’s Climate Emergency 
programme. 
 
The consultation on the cycle contraflows was undertaken in accordance with the 
statutory consultation procedure. Eighteen A4 notices were put up on the relevant 
streets in Drake for at least 3 weeks. 
 
Following the statutory consultation process was considered appropriate for the cycle 
contraflow proposals because of their modest nature, in terms of their scale and 
impact. The proposals relate purely to cycling movements and there are no proposed 
changes to vehicular movements on the streets in question and no impact on parking. 

P
age 18

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/activetravelfund


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
The proposals for the 14 Cycle Contraflow TROs were advertised on street, in the 
Herald and on the Plymouth City Council website on 22nd October 2021.  
 
Details of the proposals were also sent to the Councillors representing the affected 
wards and statutory consultees on 19th October 2021. 
 
 
With regard to the clarity of the consultation materials the title of the order, which 
featured on the notice, was "cycle contraflows"; the scheme drawings, whilst lacking 
some detail, also make clear the overall intention to allow people to cycle in a 
contraflow direction and the on street notice also advised that a hardcopy could be 
sent to residents if required.  No other complaints have been received regarding the 
consultation approach. Nonetheless, we acknowledge that the resolution of the 
drawings could be improved and we will look into improving the resolution of the plans 
for future consultations. 
 
Thank you again for your comments on the consultation. I hope the information above 
is helpful in responding to your concerns. 
 

 
  

P
age 19



 

 

OFFICIAL 

4.  RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Transport considers the representations received and the 
Plymouth City Council responses to those representations, and approves the required Traffic Regulation 
Orders. 
 

5. LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The lawful implications and consequences of the proposal have been considered and taken into 
account in the preparation of this report. 

When considering whether to make a traffic order it is the Council's responsibility to ensure that 
all relevant legislation is complied with. This includes Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation 
Act 1984 (as amended) that sets out that it is the duty of a local authority, so far as practicable 
subject to certain matters, to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular 
and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and adequate parking 
facilities on and off the highway. It is considered that the proposals comply with Section 122 of the 
Act as they practically secure the safe and expeditious movement of traffic in and around 
Plymouth and provide for suitable and adequate associated parking facilities. 

Page 20



OFFICIAL 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure - Plymouth City Council Active Travel Fund Programme

STAGE 1: WHAT IS BEING ASSESSED AND BY WHOM? 

What is being assessed - including a brief 

description of aims and objectives? 
This assessment relates to the Council’s Active Travel Fund programme. 

On 9 May the Transport Secretary announced £2 billion to support walking and cycling.  Of the £2 

billion, the Government advised £250 million would be made available to support a ‘series of swift, 

emergency interventions to make cycling and walking safer.’ 

Plymouth City Council has secured £1,194,250 from the Fund; £249,000 from phase one and 

£945,250 from phase two. 

The Council’s phase one, Emergency Active Travel Fund programme, was designed to promote 

cycling as a replacement for journeys previously made by public transport, and as a practical 

alternative to the private car. The funding has delivered a number of measures to encourage walking 

and cycling, as well as support social distancing, during the COVID-19 pandemic including 35 new 

cycle lockers, ‘20 mph when lights show’ outside 14 schools and road safety signage at key city 

roundabouts. The emphasis for the phase two, Active Travel Fund programme, which this Equality 

Impact Assessment considers, is on schemes which support more cycling and walking in the longer 

term. 

The Active Travel Fund (ATF) programme seeks to encourage and enable more trips by foot and by 

bike, building on the behavioural change which was being seen in Plymouth pre-Covid and enable 

and encourage new and returning cyclists (adults and children) to make walking and cycling the 

natural choice for the journeys they make. This remains important in the short term, as capacity on 

public transport remains constrained, but also in the long term, recognising the inter-relationships 

of walking, cycling and public transport in a fully accessible, low carbon, sustainable transport 

network. 

P
age 21



Page 2 of 5 

OFFICIAL 

The programme has been designed to create an environment that is safer for both cycling and 

walking, for trips to work and school, and is designed to encourage new cyclists, as well as those for 

whom active travel is the norm. 

Author Rosemary Starr 

Department and service Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, Sustainable Transport 

Date of assessment 28 January 2021 

STAGE 2: EVIDENCE AND IMPACT 

Protected 

characteristics 

(Equality Act) 

Evidence and information (eg data and feedback) Any adverse impact 
See guidance on how to make judgement 

Actions Timescale 

and who is 

responsible 

Age Background community data: 

 The average age in Plymouth is 39.0 years

which is about the same as the rest of

England (39.3 years) but is less than the

South West (41.6 years).

 The proportion of the working age

population (15-64) of 65.1 per cent is higher

than the rest of the South West (62 per

cent) and nationally (64 per cent).

 Children and Young People under 18 years

of age account for 19.9 per cent of the

population of the city, with 90 per cent of

this group being under 16.

 People are living longer and one in three

people in Plymouth are aged over 50. There

will be a shift in the population structure of

Plymouth over the next fifteen years as the

proportion of the population aged 65 and

over increases. There is a projected 32.7 per

cent increase in the number of people aged

No potential impact has been identified – 

the programme is designed to create an 

environment that is safer for both cycling 

and walking and is designed to encourage 

new cyclists, as well as those for whom 

active travel is the norm. By improving the 

infrastructure and making the routes both 

safer, and perceived as safer, it will allow 

cyclists (young and old) to be confident 

using our network. 

Alongside the infrastructure investment 

the project includes complementary 

programmes, such as free adult cycle 

training, and demographic data for the 

programme shows that adults of all ages 

access this programme. 

Continue to 

promote 

new 

infrastructure 

(and 

supporting 

programmes) 

to everyone 

in the 

community 

February 

2021 

onwards: 

Sustainable 

Transport 

Team – 

principally 

through the 

Plymotion 

programme 

P
age 22

http://documentlibrary/documents/equality_toolkit.pdf


Page 3 of 5 

OFFICIAL 

65 or over between 2016 and 2034 (an 

additional 15,400 individuals) in Plymouth by 

2034. 

 The result of the increasing longevity of

people’s lives is that there will be more

people who are likely to be affected by

mobility and other age related issues which

could prevent them from accessing the

services they need to use.

Disability Background community data: 

 Ten per cent of Plymouth’s population declared

that they have their day to day activities limited

to a greater degree by a long-term health

problem or disability.

 A total of 31,164 people declared themselves as

having a long-term health problem or disability.

This was from 28.5% of households which is

slightly higher than the national figure of 25.7% of

households.

 In 2013/14 1,297 adults registered with a GP in

the city have some form of learning disability

 There are 17,937 residents of state pension age

and 3,142 children who have a disability of some

form.

No potential impact has been identified – 

Improving walking and cycling 

infrastructure, mindful of the needs of all 

active travellers, will help people with 

disabilities access key services. Alongside 

the infrastructure investment the 

complementary programmes, including the 

adult cycle training, is available for 

everyone, including people with disabilities 

through access to adapted bikes and 

training. 

Raise 

awareness of 

the support 

available to 

people with 

disabilities to 

access cycling 

opportunities 

February 

2021 

onwards: 

Sustainable 

Transport 

Team – 

principally 

through the 

Plymotion 

programme 

Faith/religion or 

belief 

Plymouth’s walking and cycling infrastructure, and 

complementary programmes, are accessible to all 

regardless of their faith, religion or belief. 

No potential impact has been identified N/A N/A 

Gender - including 

marriage, pregnancy 

and maternity 

Plymouth’s walking and cycling infrastructure, and 

complementary programmes, are equally accessible to 

men and women. 

No potential impact has been identified - 

potential adverse impact on women, if the 

programme was not delivered due to 

fewer women cycling, than men. This 

programme is intended to provide a safe, 

conducive environment for cycling and 

Continue to 

promote 

new 

infrastructure 

(and 

supporting 

February 

2021 

onwards: 

Sustainable 

Transport 

Team – 

P
age 23



Page 4 of 5 

OFFICIAL 

support people to obtain the necessary 

skills and confidence to use it, it therefore 

supports all cyclists, including new cyclists, 

many of whom will be women. 

programmes) 

to everyone 

in the 

community 

principally 

through the 

Plymotion 

programme 

Gender 

reassignment 

Plymouth’s walking and cycling infrastructure, and 

complementary programmes, are available for men and 

women and therefore there should be no discrimination 

on the basis of gender reassignment. 

No potential impact has been identified None N/A 

Race Plymouth’s walking and cycling infrastructure and 

complementary programmes, are accessible to everyone 

regardless of race. 

No potential impact has been identified None N/A 

Sexual orientation -

including civil 

partnership 

Plymouth’s walking and cycling infrastructure and 

complementary programmes, are accessible to all 

regardless of their sexual orientation. 

No potential impact has been identified None N/A 

STAGE 3: ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS FOR THE FOLLOWING? IF SO, PLEASE RECORD ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN 

Local priorities Implications Timescale and who is responsible 

Reduce the gap in average hourly 
pay between men and women by 
2020. 

None N/A 

Increase the number of hate crime 

incidents reported and maintain 

good satisfaction rates in dealing 

with racist, disablist, homophobic, 

transphobic and faith, religion and 

belief incidents by 2020. 

None N/A 

Good relations between different 

communities (community cohesion) 
The provision of improved walking and cycling facilities, and 

complementary behavioural change programmes, will help to promote 

good relations between all residents, regardless of gender, ethnic 

background, sexual orientation, faith or disability, by helping everyone 

access key services on an equal basis. 

N/A 

P
age 24



Page 5 of 5 

OFFICIAL 

Human rights 
Please refer to guidance

The decision is consistent with the Human Rights Act.  N/A 

STAGE 4: PUBLICATION 

Responsible Officer Paul Barnard Date 09/02/21 

Paul Barnard, Service Director, Strategic Planning and Infrastructure 

P
age 25

http://documentlibrary/documents/guide_to_completing_equality_impact_assessments.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1a THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH (MOVING TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS) (AMENDMENT ORDER No. 2021.2137263 - CYCLE CONTRAFLOWS) ORDER
	Briefing Report
	EIA


